
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
30 South Main Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 

AGENDA 

September 17, 2018 
Special-Called Meeting at 6:45pm 

Regular Meeting at 7:00 pm 
 

  Pg# Presenter 
    

1. Special-Called Meeting ……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Public information and input meeting on Weaverville’s intent to apply to USDA, Rural 
Development, for financial assistance for the anticipated construction of a new 12-
inch water line on Clarks Chapel Road and Ollie Weaver Road to improve the water 
distribution system reliability and operation. 

2 Public Works & 
WR-Martin 

    
    
1. Call to Order ....................................................................................................................  Mayor Root 
    
2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda ...........................................................................  Mayor Root 
    
3. Approval of Minutes ………………………………………………………………………………………………….  Mayor Root 
 A. August 20, 2018 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes  5  

    
4. Special Recognitions .......................................................................................................  Mayor Root 
    
5. General Public Comments ………………………………………………………………………………………….  Mayor Root 
    
6. Consent Agenda   
 A. Monthly Tax Report .................................................................................................... 10 Town Manager 
 B. Tax Releases................................................................................................................ 12  
 C. Code Amendments – Zoning  - Nonconformities, Conditional Zoning Districts, 

Political Signage - Set Public Hearing for October 15, 2018 at 6:30pm ………………..…. 
 

13 
 

 D. Amendment to Conditional Zoning District for Northridge Townhouses – Initial 
Consideration and Set Public Hearing for October 15, 2018 at 6:30 pm ………………… 

 
26 

 

    
7. Town Manager’s Report .................................................................................................  Town Manager 
    
8. Discussion & Action Items   
 A. Sale of Old Bus Garage................................................................................................ 27 Town Attorney 
 B. Code Amendments – Nuisances ………………………..………………………………………………….. 46 Town Attorney 
 C. Quarterly Reports – Public Works and Water ………………………………………………………… 63 Public Works 
    
9. Closed Session ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………  Mayor Root 
 A.  NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3) – To consult with an attorney employed or retained by 

the public body  
  

 B.  NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) – To consider the qualifications, competence, 
performance, character, fitness, conditions of appointment, or conditions of initial 
employment of an individual public officer or employee or prospective public officer 
or employee. 

  

    
10. Adjournment ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  Mayor Root 

 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

 
DATE OF MEETING:  September 17, 2018 at 6:45 pm 

SUBJECT: Public Information and Input on Seeking USDA-RD Financing for 
Waterline Extension Project 

PRESENTER:   Public Works Director / WR-Martin 

ATTACHMENT:  Waterline Extension Project Maps  
 

DESCRIPTION: 

The Town proposes to construct a new 12-inch main waterline on Clarks Chapel Road and Ollie 
Weaver Road to improve the Town’s water distribution system reliability and operations. The 
estimated project cost is anticipated to be $2,970,600, and the Town is seeking financing for 100% 
of the project cost.  The project would be considered a Water & Environmental Quality application 
under USDA Rural Development and would be funded through their Water & Sewer Infrastructure 
Program.  
 
This Rural Development fund offers loans of up to 40 years in length depending on project size 
and final review, and the current market rate (3.875% for the third quarter in 2018, but subject to 
change in the fourth quarter) is fixed for the life of the loan.  A 40-year term is much longer in 
length than conventional financing, which reduces the dollar amount of each debt service payment 
and lessens the financial impact on the Town’s budget from year to year. 
 
In August Town Council authorized staff to pursue Rural Development funding for this needed 
water line extension project and provided authorization to the Town Manager to proceed with an 
application.  
 
This project and financing was included in the Town’s Capital Improvement Plan beginning with 
year 2021.  Loan payments to USDA are tied to the Town’s water enterprise fund.  
 
The item on tonight’s agenda follows a required Notice of Intent to Apply for Federal Assistance 
and Public Input Meeting that was published in the Weaverville Tribune on September 13, 2018, 
in accordance with federal law. Tonight’s public meeting is intended to share information about 
the project and receive comments and feedback from the public. 
 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

No formal action by Town Council is requested tonight.  

2



É

Path: K:\17\17-0800\170809-WTP Expansion\Geomatics\GIS\Waterline_USGS_Erik.mxd
1 inch = 6,000 feet

Town of Weaverville
Water System

Improvement Project

Printed Date: 8/13/2018Aerial Created By: LMWT

É

0 4,000 8,000 12,0002,000
Feet

115 MacKenan Dr  I  Cary NC, 27511
t: 919.469.3340

license #: C-0832
www.withersravenel.com

WithersRavenel
Engineers      Planners      SurveyorsI I

PROPOSED
PROJECT AREA

MADISON COUNTY

BUNCOMBE COUNTY

IVY RIVER WTP

IVY RIVER INTAKE

3



N 
CO

LL
EG

E 
ST

N 
MA

IN
 S

T

KENN EDYRD

D E E PW O O
DS

RD

SALEM
HILLRD

OL
D M

AR
S

HIL
L H

WY

MONTICELLO RD

US 25 70 HWY

US 25 70 HWY S
DULA SP

RING S RD

OAKLAND ST

CHURCH ST

SUNSET DR

HIG
HCOUNTR Y RD

PINE ST

WOO
TE

N COVE
RD

SC EN IC

VI
EW

DR

N BU
NC

OM
BE

SC
HO

OL
RD

SCENI CMOUNTAINDR

MOORE ST

OL
LIE

WE
AV

ER
RD

US 25 70 HWY N

COLEMAN ST

HIG
GIN

S RD

NEW
COVENANTDR

RASADADR

GAD DY RD

RO
B

TS
ST HAM

OLD GIBBS RD

CL
AR

KS
CH

AP
EL

RD

CHERRY 

ALEXANDER RD

SQUIRRELH

I LL DR

HA MBURGDR

CLINTON ST

FOREST

RIDGEDR

MUR
PH

Y HIL
L R

D

GRIFFEE RD

FLAT C R EEKVI
L

LA
GEDR

EURO
PA DR

RED COLE DR

WILLIAMS ST

EVENING SHADE DR

REDMAPLEDR

PINE RID
GE

DR

NH
ALL

DR

AYERS RD

BALLARDRD

GILLRD
DO

G

GARRISON BRANCHNO2
RD

BETT ST
RO

UD
RD

RE
X W

HIT
TE

DRD

PI NE FOR

E ST

DR

SHUFORDRD

GREENRIDGE RD

NORTHCRESTRD

C OL
ER

D

KE
NTWOOD DR

MONTICELLO VI LLAGE DR

EDMONDS RD

GARRISON BRANC H RD

SQUI RREL RIDGE DR

SPRINGMEADOWS RD

CLARKS CHAP
EL

CHURCH
RD

D OANRD

SILVERWOOD FARM RD

RAY

HO L LA

R RD

GI
LL

BRA
CH

RD

HARBECK
DR

NCCGIA

É

Path: K:\17\17-0800\170809-WTP Expansion\Geomatics\GIS\Waterline_Erik.mxd Printed Date: 8/13/2018Aerial Date: 2013 Created By: LMWT

1 inch = 1,500 feet

Town of Weaverville
Water System

Improvement Project
Project Location Map

0 500 1,000 2,000 3,000
Feet

WithersRavenel
Engineers   I   Planners I     Surveyors

115 MacKenan Dr  I  Cary NC, 27511
t: 919.469.3340

license #: 

N

C-0

R

8

D

32
www.withersravenel.co

DR

m

4

jgray
Callout
EXISTING 20" WATER LINE

jgray
Callout
REDUCTION TO 10" WATER LINE

jgray
Callout
EXISTING 6" WATER LINE UNDER I-26



 

 
Page 1 of 5  August 20 2018  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

      

MINUTES 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE                                                                       TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA                                                                                      MONDAY, AUGUST 20, 2018 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, August 20, 2018, at 7:00 
p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 

Council Members present were: Mayor Al Root, Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill, Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilman 
Jeffrey McKenna, Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons.  

Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek Huninghake, 
Police Chief Alan Wyatt, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Public 
Works Director Dale Pennell and Water Treatment Plant Supervisor Trent Duncan. 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Root called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that item A under Closed Session (To consult with an attorney employed 
or retained by the public body in order to preserve attorney-client privilege) could be omitted.  
Councilwoman Sherrill made a motion to approve the agenda with the aforementioned revisions. Councilman 
Fitzsimmons seconded and all voted in favor of the motion. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes 

Councilwoman Sherrill made the motion to approve the minutes from July 16, 2018 Town Council Regular Meeting 
and July 24, 2018 Special Called Meeting as presented. Councilman McKenna seconded the motion and all voted in 
favor on the approval of the minutes. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 

Councilman Jackson moved for the approval of the consent agenda. Councilwoman Sherrill seconded the motion and 
all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the consent agenda. 

 
A. FY 2017-2018 Tax Collector’s Settlement – Approval of the Resolution Approving the Tax Collector’s 

Settlement for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 
B. Tax Release – Approved Tax Release of $164,501 in valuation from Kenneth Lovelace property identified as  

PIN 9732-70-0078 for 2010, so $896.51 can be released from the 2010 levy.  
C. Budget Amendment: Re-Appropriations from FY 2018-2019 Budget – Approval of Budget Amendment 
D. Road Closure Ordinance: North Buncombe Homecoming Parade & Art in Autumn – Approval of Road 

Closure Ordinance for North Buncombe Homecoming Parade on Sept. 28, 2018 and Art in Autumn on  
Sept. 15, 2018.  

E. Board Appointments: Planning and Zoning Board, Board of Adjustment & ABC Board – Appointed Sylvia 
Valois as regular member of the Board of Adjustment and reappointed Cynthia Wright of the Board of Adjustment 
to serve three-year terms beginning in September 2018. Appointed Gene Knoefel as alternate member on Board 
of Adjustment for an unexpired term beginning September 2018 and expiring September 2019.  

5



 

 
Page 2 of 5  August 20 2018  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

Reappointed Gary Burge and Catherine Cordell and Appointed Steve Warren as regular members of the Planning 
and Zoning Board to serve two-year terms beginning in September 2018. Reappointed John Chase to serve as 
alternate member on the Planning and Zoning Board to serve a two-year term beginning September 2018.  
Reappointed Roney Hilliard to the ABC Board to serve a three year term beginning in September 2018 and that 
Rob Chason be designated as the ABC Board Chairmen. 

F. Waterline Acceptance/Authorization for Stall Level Approval – Bulls Bay, LLC – Central Avenue 
Subdivision – Approval of Waterline Extension into Town’s Water System subject to Staff level and set the 
improvement defects guaranty amount of $1500.00 

G. Re-Subdivision of Lot 55 of Reems Creek Village – Preliminary/ Final Plat Approval – Approval of 
Preliminary/Final Plat of the Re-Subdivision of Lot 55 of Reems Creek Village 

H. Appointment to the French Broad River Metropolitan Planning Organization & Transportation Advisory 
Committee – Appointed Councilman McKenna as the Town of Weaverville representative on the French Broad 
River Metropolitan Planning Organization and Transportation Advisory Committee with his term beginning 
immediately.  
 

5. General Public Comment – Doug Theroux signed up to speak about the Hawthorne at Garrison Branch action item, 
and Mayor Root exercised his discretion to have Mr. Theroux speak when Council got to that specific item. 
 

6. Town Manager’s Report 
Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her Manager’s Report to Council that included the Town has received an 
upset bid on the former Bus Garage at 13 Central Avenue in the amount of $367,550. This has been published and any 
future upset bids must be received by August 27,2018; Due to legislative changes, the elections early voting period 
this year opens on Wednesday, October 17, instead of October 18 but will run through November 3; An update on 
ServLine shows that only 65 customers have opted out of the program and 100 customers have opted in to the 
optional line protection program; and the Town has reviewed the Greenways Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
and is waiting for further comments from Buncombe County but hopes to have the final MOU to Council by 
Septembers meeting. 
 

7. Discussion and Action Items 
A. Appointment of Tax Collector and Order for Collection for FY 2018-2019 

Town Manager Selena Coffey informed Town Council that the current tax collector Debbie Bruce will be retiring 
on October 1, 2018 and asked them to appoint Derek Huninghake as the Town’s Tax Collector and Debbie Bruce 
as Deputy Tax Collector until the effective date of her retirement. She also mentioned that after appointing the 
Tax Collector, Town Council must approve the bond to be issued for the tax collector and adopt the Order of 
Collection for FY 2018-2019. 
 
Councilman Jackson made a motion to appoint Derek Huninghake as the Town’s Tax Collector and that Debbie 
Bruce be appointed as Deputy Tax Collector until her retirement, that the bond amount be set at $250,000 for the 
Tax Collector and Deputy Tax Collector through June 30, 2019, and that the Resolution Adopting the Order of 
Collection for FY 2018-2019 be adopted. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion. The motion passed by a 
unanimous vote of Council. 
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson administered the Oath of Office to Derek Huninghake  
 

B. Waterline Extension and Allocation Request – Hawthorne at Garrison Branch 
Planning and Zoning Board Chairman Doug Theroux commented that he didn’t have any issues with this project, 
but would first like to see the actual acreage the developer owns, since GIS doesn’t reflect the 25 acres needed for 
this project and if the Town can have the annexation procedure completed before the water is provided.  
 
Public Works Director Dale Pennell informed Town Council that before them was a water commitment request 
for the project known as Hawthorne at Garrison Branch, formerly known as Northpoint Commons.  The water 

6



 

 
Page 3 of 5  August 20 2018  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

allocation request is for 66,000 GPD with peak demand of 234 gallons per minute.  Public Works Director 
Pennell’s recommendation is that we can serve this development with approximately 1,000 linear feet of water 
main constructed to reach the property and with 2-inch residential meters serving each residential unit at each 
building by branching off a waterline that is a minimum of 6-inches in diameter within the proposed development.  
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson addressed Council about the legalities of this process and mentioned that in front 
of them tonight was a request for water allocation. Before any development can get out of the ground, they will 
need to know that they have access to water because these multi-family residential units can’t be easily served by 
wells. In order to evaluate this project, Council will usually get a preliminary conceptual idea showing what is 
going to be on the property. She noted that this is not a development review or approval, so if Council decides to 
approve the allocation it doesn’t mean the development project has been approved.  Councils practice has been to 
require these projects to annex into the Town as condition of water commitment approval and have developmental 
approvals go through the Town, not the County.  
 
Marvin Mercer, Mercer Design Group, commented that the number of units decreased due to the architects’ 
configurations not allowing for 240 units with a mixture of 2, 3, and 4 bedroom units, therefore the water 
allocation request is lower. He also noted that the GIS system was wrong because the developer had the property 
surveyed by Holmes & Associates after last meeting and it showed that they were over the 25 acres. They can 
give Town Council a copy of the survey if they would like. Mr. Mercer mentioned that they have listened to all 
the Town Departments input and implemented them into the plan.    
 
Town Council discussed concerns with the project being constructed under the county standards, instead of the 
Towns standards and wondered why the number of units was lowered, but is now back up to 234.  
  
Phil Payonk, Hawthorne Residential Partners, commented that considering the length of time on this approval 
process, his partners would look to build to county standards and then annex into the Town after the project has 
been completed. They are getting close to the end of the due diligence phase and wouldn’t really have time to go 
through another long process like annexation.  As for the number of units, Mr. Payonk doesn’t remember 
lowering the number of units past 234, but with acquiring more land and reducing the overall density, they have 
incurred more costs that need to be accounted for.  He stated that the real issue is they would have to go buy the 
property from the owner for $1.6 million and then come back around to Council and see if they can get full 
approval.  
 
Mayor Root commented that as for the delay issue, Mr. Payonk and Mr. Mercer have been contacting the Town 
throughout this process, so he believes they have been trying to get before the Town.  However, Mayor Root 
noted the main issue is the Conditional Zoning District process, since it would give the Town the control of the 
process instead of ceding control to the county.   
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson confirmed that since this is a high density residential project, when the 
developers get annexed in, they will ask to be in the R-12 zoning district. Unfortunately, the R-12 zoning district 
doesn’t give any rights or stated standards, so they don’t have any assurance that they can build if they meet all 
the standards.  
 
Councilman Nagle commented that the water allocation will be approved, if it is annexed into the Town and 
constructed under our conditions.   
 
Tom McClellan, Attorney, mentioned that his clients have agreed to two things, a voluntary annexation and 
building the development in accordance with the plans submitted to the Town.  The main problem is procedurally, 
since they can’t ask for annexation or their zoning until the property is acquired.  This puts his clients in a 
financial predicament because what if they buy the project for $1.6 million and can’t build the development to 
their standards.  

7



 

 
Page 4 of 5  August 20 2018  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

 
Councilman Fitzsimmons made a motion to approve a water allocation of 66,000 gallons per day with a peak 
demand of 234 gallons per minute for domestic and fire protection services, to serve the Hawthorne at Garrison 
Branch project based on the conditions that the developer will 1.) Seek voluntary annexation into the Town of 
Weaverville, 2.) Provide proof of land size at 25 plus acres, 3.) Build development under confines of Town 
standards, and 4.) Will look substantially similar in design standards as the other Hawthorne buildings. 
Councilman Nagle seconded the motion.  
 
1. Recess 
Mayor Root recessed the meeting at 8:16 pm. 
2. Reconvene/ Call to Order 
Mayor Root called the meeting back to order at 8:27 pm. 
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that Council is only considering the water commitment tonight. The 
project will go in front of the Planning and Zoning Board when the petition for the voluntary annexation is 
received.  
 
Mayor Root called for a vote on the motion. The motion failed with a 1-4 vote.  Councilman Fitzsimmons was the 
only affirmative vote.  
 
Councilman Nagle made a motion to approve a water allocation of 66,000 gallons per day with a peak demand of 
234 gallons per minute for domestic and fire protection services, to serve the Hawthorne at Garrison Branch 
project which is proposed as a 234-unit residential apartment project with a pool and community buildings and 
the extension of the Town’s water system to include construction and installation of a 12-inch water main 
extension from the existing 12-inch water main at or near the intersection of Monticello Road and Ollie Weaver 
Road to the property, and a minimum of a 6-inch water main through the property from Ollie Weaver Road to 
Garrison Branch Road intersection, and with such approval being conditioned upon: voluntary annexation into 
the Town’s municipal limits and development reviews and approvals by the Town upon annexation. Councilman 
Fitzsimmons seconded the motion. Motion passed with a 5-0 vote.  
  

C. Water System Capital Improvement Project 
Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that before Town Council was a Resolution on Intent to Apply and 
Selection of Authorized Personnel and the Reimbursement Resolution. Once approved, both these resolutions will 
go towards the waterline extension project. She also noted that the Town publicized a Request for Qualification 
for Engineering Services for the USDA-Funded Water System Improvement Project as approved by Council at 
the July meeting and two proposals were received. Town Manager Coffey has reviewed them both and believes 
that Withers-Ravenel’s qualifications are best aligned with the Town’s objectives and recommends that Council 
award the project to them.  
 
Town Manager Coffey and Jessica Lane, WR-Martin discussed with Council that the Federal government 
changed the USDA application deadline to August 17, 2018, which was last week so the Town wasn’t able to get 
their application in on time. However, since the Federal Government usually accepts applications on a first-come, 
first-serve basis, the plan is to go ahead with the USDA application in the new allocated budget starting in 
October 2018.   
 
Councilman Nagle made a motion to adopt the attached reimbursement resolution and resolution of intent to 
apply for USDA funding and, based on the Town Manager’s recommendation, select and award the professional 
engineering services contract to WithersRavenel for Phase I waterline extension improvements and application 
for USDA financing. Councilman Jackson seconded the motion. The motion passed with a 5-0 vote from Council. 

8



 

 
Page 5 of 5  August 20 2018  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

 
 

D. Fire Department Quarterly Report 
Fire Chief Ted Williams presented the Weaverville Fire Departments Quarterly Report for May 2018 – July 2018. 
Chief Williams noted that there were no structural fires this quarter, however, EMS calls and motor vehicle 
accidents increased, and they installed 31 car seats and conducted 54 commercial business inspections.   

 
E. Police Department Quarterly Report 

Police Chief Alan Wyatt presented the Weaverville Police Departments Quarterly Report for May 2018 – July 
2018.  Chief Wyatt noted that there were 50 vehicle crashes this quarter with 13 individuals injured, one armed 
robbery in July, and felony and drug charges are staying around the same amount as last quarter.  
 

F. Closed Session 
Councilman Jackson made the motion to enter closed session as per N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(6) to 
consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of appointment, or conditions 
of initial employment of an individual public officer or employee or prospective public officer or employee. 
Councilwoman Sherrill seconded the motion and by a unanimous vote Council entered into closed session. 
 
[CLOSED SESSION] 
 
Councilman Jackson made the motion to exit closed session. Councilman Nagle seconded and all voted 
unanimously to exit closed session and re-enter open session. 
 

G. Adjournment 
Councilman Jackson made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Nagle seconded and all voted to adjourn the 
Council’s meeting at 9.15 p.m. 
 

__________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

9



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018   

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:   Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Tax Collector provides the following monthly tax report as of September 13, 
2018. This report is provided for information only.  

No action is requested or required. 

 

 

 

  

10



AS OF 9/13/2018
Real Property: 750,820,030        
Real Property Discoveries: -                         

Total Real Property:  750,820,030        
Personal: 54,787,228           
Personal Discoveries: -                         

Total Personal: 54,787,228           
Public Utilities: 4,952,725             
Exemption: (10,656,570)         
Releases:
Total Tax Value 799,903,413        

Tax Levy @.38 cents per $100
Real Property: 2,853,116             
Personal Property: 208,191                
Public Utilities: 18,820                  
Less Under $5 Adjustment -                         
Total Public Utilities: 18,820                  
Exemption: (40,495)                 
Releases: -                       
Total Levy (Total Billed) 3,039,633             

Total Current Year Collections 186,551                
% Collected 6.14%

Total Left to be Collected: 2,853,082             

Prior Years Paid -                         

Town of Weaverville
MONTHLY TAX REPORT

FY 2018-19

11



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018   

SUBJECT: Tax Releases 

PRESENTER:   Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Town Council is asked to approve two tax releases from the 2018 tax bills, both due to 
property being outside of the Town’s jurisdiction: 

The first one is for personal property owned by David Crain at 86 Alexander Road. The 
requested release is for $1,755 in value and $6.67 from the 2018 tax levy.  

The second request is for business personal property owned by Play Station at 450 
Weaverville Road. The requested release is for $47,250 in value and $179.55 from the 2018 
tax levy. 

 

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council is requested to approved the above-described releases. This action could be 
in the form of the following motion:  

I move to approve (1) the release of the personal property of David Crain at 86 
Alexander Road valued at $1,755, so that $6.67 can be released from the 2018 
levy, and (2) the release of business personal property owned by Play Station at 
450 Weaverville Road valued at $47,250, so that $179.55 can be released from 
the 2018 levy. 

12



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, September 17, 2018 

Subject: Code Amendments – Zoning – Nonconformities, Conditional Zoning 
Districts, Political Signage – Setting a Date for a Public Hearing  

Presenter:   Planning Director 

Attachments: Proposed Amendments 

Description: 

On Monday, May 21, 2018 Town Council initially considered three proposed amendments to the 
zoning ordinance proposed by staff related to conditional zoning districts, nonconformities and 
political signage and referred same to the Planning and Zoning Board for review and comment.  
The following is a summary of the rationale for each requested amendment: 

Conditional Zoning Districts: The Planning and Zoning Board has recognized a need for a zoning 
district which would ease the transition from commercially zoned to residentially zoned 
properties and instructed staff to begin researching such language. Staff believes that this 
objective may be accomplished through conditional zoning rather that the creation of a new 
zoning district. The proposed amendments firm up existing language regarding conditional 
zoning districts and the approval and post-approval procedures and opens up the availability of 
a conditional zoning district for any use on any parcel subject to Town Council approval.  

Nonconformities: In response to two appeals heard by the Zoning Board of Adjustment on 
administrative decisions related to nonconformities, staff and the Planning and Zoning Board 
have been working on a full review and revision of the zoning ordinance provisions related to 
nonconformities in order to erase current ambiguities and provide firmer ground for 
administrative decisions (which are appealable to the ZBA) regarding legal uses that are made 
nonconforming by zoning text or map amendments. 

Political Signage: The Town’s ordinance related to the placement of political signage is in need of 
revision in order to become compliant with state statute.  

Then Planning and Zoning Board has worked hard to draft and review these proposed legislative 
changes and to develop its consistency statements and recommendations regarding the same.  

Action Requested: 

Prior to Town Council taking action on this proposed amendments a public hearing must be held.  
Staff asks that Town Council consider the following motion: 

I move that Town Council schedule a public hearing on the proposed amendments to the 
Town’s Code of Ordinance concerning zoning nonconformities, conditional zoning districts 
and political signage for October 15, 2018, at 6:30 pm in Council Chambers at Town Hall 
located at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC. 

13



 

Recommended by P&Z Board 
September 4, 2018  1 

PROPOSED CODE AMENDMENTS – ZONING – NONCONFORMITIES 

DELETE THE FOLLOWING DEFINITIONS FROM SECTION 36-5: 

Nonconforming occupied lot. A lot which contained a structure on the effective date of this chapter or 
at the time the lot was brought into the town's jurisdiction but which does not meet the minimum 
requirements for width, area, front, side, or rear yard, height and/or open space for the zoning district 
in which it is located. 

Nonconforming open uses of land. An open use on a lot when the only structures are incidental and 
accessory to the principal open use which was in existence prior to the effective date of this chapter 
or at the time the lot was brought into the town's jurisdiction and which would not be permitted by 
this chapter in the zoning district in which it is located. Uses such as storage yards, used car lots, auto 
wrecking yards, and golf driving ranges are examples of open uses. 

Nonconforming structure. Any structure which does not conform with the requirements of the zoning 
district in which it is located, either at the effective date of the ordinance from which this chapter 
derives or as a result of subsequent amendments to this chapter. 

Nonconforming use of structure. A use of a structure which existed prior to the effective date of this 
chapter, or at the time the lot on which the structure is sited was brought into the town's jurisdiction, 
and which would not be permitted in the zoning district in which it is located. 

Nonconforming vacant lot. A lot which does not meet the dimensional requirements for the zoning 
district in which it is located, but which was recorded prior to the effective date of this chapter or 
prior to the time the lot was brought into the town's jurisdiction. This definition shall not be 
interpreted to include lots recorded prior to the adoption of this chapter which were in violation of 
any prior subdivision regulation of the town. 

[NOTE – Definition of Nonconforming sign was retained in Section 36-5]  

 

ADD THE FOLLOWING DEFINITIONS TO SECTION 36-5:  

Dimensional and/or numerical development requirements or standards include, but are not limited to, 
those requirements or standards associated with density, lot size, lot width, lot depth, setbacks, height, 
structure size standards, open space, number of parking spaces, or separation requirements between 
particular uses or zoning districts. 

Impact means the effect of one land use upon another as measured by such factors which include, but 
are not limited to, the following: traffic, noise, site activity, hours of operation, lighting, vibration, dust, 
smoke, odor emissions. 

Lawful nonconformity means any nonconformity involving a dimensional or numerical requirement or 
use of property that affects a structure erected or a lot created in conformity with the then-applicable 
development requirements of the town (or for which a vested right has been established), but 
subsequently made nonconforming by action of the town through a zoning map or zoning ordinance 
text amendment.  

14



 

Recommended by P&Z Board 
September 4, 2018  2 

Nonconforming lot is a lot that was lawfully created prior to the effective date of the applicable sections 
of town code, or subsequent amendment thereto, but does not conform to the minimum lot size, lot 
depth or minimum lot width requirements established for the zoning district in which it is located.  

Nonconforming structure means any building or structure with a nonconformity involving an applicable 
dimensional or numerical development requirement.  

Nonconforming use means any lawful nonconformity involving the use of the property. This may include, 
but is not limited to, nonconformities associated with a use not permitted in the zoning district in which 
it is located, a use which cannot meet the newly enacted standards established in the zoning district for 
such use, or a use inconsistent with Town zoning but existing upon annexation into the Town.   

Renovation means the repairing or remodeling of a structure in which the exterior walls, foundation and 
roof are maintained structurally intact. 

 

DELETE SECTIONS 36-19, 36-20 and 36-21 AND 
REPLACE WITH A NEW ARTICLE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

ARTICLE XVI - NONCONFORMITIES 

Sec. 36-530. – Purpose and application 

(a) Purpose. It is recognized that, over time, lawful nonconformities may develop as a result of 
amendments to the zoning map or zoning ordinance text which change the application of town 
development regulations to particular properties. Nonconformities can also arise when properties on 
which vested rights have been established are annexed into the municipal boundaries of the town. It 
is important that such properties, while nonconforming, be adequately maintained and permitted to 
continue, but not expanded or enlarged in any fashion that increases the extent of nonconformity. 
Where possible, such nonconformities should be made, wholly or incrementally, conforming.  

(b) Application. The provisions of this article apply only to lawful nonconformities. Nonconformities 
other than lawful nonconformities shall be considered violations of the town’s code.  

(c) Applicability to variances, conditional zoning districts and special use permit. Where a variance, 
conditional zoning district, or special use permit has been granted for a use or dimensional 
requirement which does not otherwise conform to the requirements of this chapter, that 
feature/condition shall be deemed conforming so long as the property remains in compliance with 
their respective approved site plans. Likewise, when properties on which vested rights have been 
established are annexed into the municipal boundaries of the town, any use or dimensional 
requirement which does not otherwise conform to the requirements of this chapter shall be 
deemed conforming so long as they remain in compliance with the approved site specific 
development plan. 

 
Sec. 36-531. - Nonconforming Lots.  

15



 

Recommended by P&Z Board 
September 4, 2018  3 

(a) A nonconforming lot may be used as a building site subject to the compliance with applicable use 
regulations and limitations, and minimum dimensional or numerical development requirements for 
the zoning district in which the lot is located including, but not limited to, setback and yards, height, 
open space, buffers, screening, and parking. 

(b) If compliance with the applicable minimum dimensional or numerical development requirements is 
not possible, the nonconforming lot may be used as a building site subject to the following: 

(1) Where the lot area and lot width are not more than 20 percent below the minimum 
standards specified, and all other dimensional requirements are otherwise complied with, 
the zoning administrator is authorized to issue a zoning permit; 

(2) Where the lot area and lot width are more than 20 percent below the minimum standards 
specified in this chapter or other dimensional requirements cannot be met, the board of 
adjustment is authorized to consider requests for variances of such dimensional and 
numerical requirements as shall conform  as closely as possible to the required 
dimensions. 

(c) If a lot is nonconforming in that it does not have street access as described in Section 36-12, a 
building can be constructed on such lot if the applicant can provide evidence of a recorded legal 
access to a publicly maintained street or roadway which will support actual vehicular access to the 
lot. 

 
Sec. 36-532. - Nonconforming Structures.  

 
(a) A nonconforming structure devoted to a use permitted in the zoning district in which it is located 

may continue only in accordance with the provisions of this article. A nonconformity must have 
been legal when it was established in order to receive nonconforming protection. A structure which 
is a violation of the zoning ordinance when it was established shall not ripen into a legitimate 
nonconformity. 

(b) Normal repair and maintenance may be performed to allow the continuation of nonconforming 
structures so long as no expansion of the nonconformity occurs as a result of such work.  

(c) Section 36-533 shall apply to all changes of use within a nonconforming structure, except that a 
nonconforming structure with a compatible use may not under any circumstances change its use to 
a nonconforming use. 

(d) Except as provided in this article, a nonconforming structure may be renovated, expanded, or 
enlarged, without bringing the nonconforming structure into conformity with these regulations, 
only if the applicable nonconformity is not increased and no new nonconformities are created. The 
following shall also apply:  

(1) Increases in nonconformities related to building height are not allowed; 

(2) Increases in the square footage of a nonconforming structure within the setbacks of the 
zoning district in which the structure is located are not allowed. In considering whether an 

16



 

Recommended by P&Z Board 
September 4, 2018  4 

increase in square footage has been made or is proposed the zoning administrator is to take 
into consideration both horizontal expansion (i.e. increasing the building footprint within 
the setback) and vertical expansion (i.e. adding a second story to the portion of a structure 
within the setback).  

(e) Residential structures made nonconforming by a text amendment or map amendment which 
rezones the property to a zoning district which does not permit residential uses may be renovated, 
expanded, or enlarged so long as the dimensional and numerical development standards for the R-
1 zoning district can be met. See Section 36-533(c) for nonconforming residential uses.  

(f) A nonconforming structure cannot be moved unless it thereafter conforms to the standards of the 
zoning district in which it is located. If such a move is not possible but a relocation of the 
nonconforming structure is desired, then such relocation is permissible as long as the applicable 
nonconformity is lessened and no new nonconformities are created.  

(g) In the interest of public safety and health, structural alterations or remodeling of nonconforming 
structures which are required by any public law, and so ordered by a public officer in authority, 
shall be permitted. 

(h) Where a nonconforming structure is destroyed or damaged by fire, flood, wind, or other disaster, 
the structure may be repaired or restored to its original dimensions and conditions as long as a 
zoning permit for the repair or restoration is issued within 180 days of the date of the damage. 
Upon request, the board of adjustment is authorized to extend this period up to an additional 180 
days if the applicant can present competent, substantial and material evidence showing good cause 
for such extension. Good cause could include, but is not limited to, delays related to estate 
administration, casualty insurance issues, or litigation concerning the property. 

 
Sec. 36-533. - Nonconforming Uses.  

(a) Nonconforming uses of land or structures, and nonconforming structures that contain 
nonconforming uses may continue only in accordance with the provisions of this article. A 
nonconformity must have been legal when it was established in order to receive nonconforming 
protection. A use which is a violation of the zoning ordinance when it was established shall not 
ripen into a lawful nonconformity. 

(b) Except as provided herein, no nonconforming use can be extended, expanded, enlarged, or 
moved if such change results in an increase in the extent or intensity of the nonconforming use 
as it existed at the time the lawful nonconformity was created.  

(c) Residential uses made nonconforming by a text amendment or a map amendment which 
rezones the property to a zoning district which does not permit residential uses cannot be 
expanded to increase the number of residences or family units from those existing at the time 
the lawful nonconformity was created. See Section 36-532(e) concerning nonconforming 
residential structures. 

17



 

Recommended by P&Z Board 
September 4, 2018  5 

(d) Replacement of nonconforming uses.  

(1) A nonconforming use of a structure may be replaced by another nonconforming use if it falls 
within the use definition as the original nonconforming use. Such lawful replacement of use 
may be permitted by the zoning administrator.   

(2) A nonconforming use of a structure may be replaced by another nonconforming use if it is 
no less compatible with the surrounding properties and district than the nonconforming use 
which it replaces. Such requests must be submitted to the board of adjustment which is 
authorized to grant such a request if the applicant can present competent, substantial and 
material evidence that the proposed use is as compatible or more compatible with the 
surrounding properties and district than the original nonconforming use. Factors for the 
board’s consideration include, but are not limited to, traffic, noise, site activity, hours of 
operation, lighting, vibration, dust, smoke, odor emissions, and any other factors that the 
board finds relevant to compare or differentiate between the existing use(s) and the 
proposed replacement use(s). The board of adjustment may establish conditions to ensure 
that the compatibility factors are maintained as approved.  

(e) No use may be established if it renders a conforming use as nonconforming. 

(f) Once a nonconforming use is changed to a conforming use, that nonconforming use cannot be 
lawfully reestablished.  

(g) Where a nonconforming use is visibly discontinued for 180 consecutive days, regardless of any 
intent or efforts to resume the use, then the use shall not be reestablished or resumed, and any 
subsequent use of the land or structure must conform to the requirements of town code.  

(h) Where a structure in which a nonconforming use is located is destroyed or damaged by fire, 
flood, wind, or other disaster, the structure may be repaired or restored to its original 
dimensions or substantially similar dimensions if the nonconformity is not increased, and as long 
as a zoning permit for the repair or restoration is issued within 180 days of the date of the 
damage and the nonconforming use can resume. Upon request, the board of adjustment is 
authorized to extend this period up to an additional 180 days if the applicant can present 
competent, substantial and material evidence showing good cause for such extension. Good 
cause could include, but is not limited to, delays related to estate administration, casualty 
insurance issues, or litigation concerning the property. 

(i) Signage for a lawful nonconforming use shall be limited to one wall mounted or attached sign 
which shall not exceed 10% of the total surface area on which the sign is located. Said signage 
may be illuminated but must be shielded in a fashion to prevent light trespass and to brighten 
only the surface of the sign. 

 

Sec. 36-534. – Nonconforming signs. 

(a) All nonconforming signs shall be removed, changed, or altered to conform with the provisions of this 
chapter within 5 years after the same became nonconforming, except that signs having a valid 

18



 

Recommended by P&Z Board 
September 4, 2018  6 

permit issued pursuant to the provisions of the North Carolina Outdoor Advertising Control Act shall 
be exempt from the provisions of the 5 year amortization provision above set forth.  
 

(b) Failure to remove, change, or alter a nonconforming sign within the amortization period set forth 
above shall result in the removal of said sign by the town at the expense of the owner of said sign.  

 
(c) If the owner of a nonconforming sign which has been removed by the town fails to pay for the costs 

of removal within 30 days of the billing date for such action, a lien shall be placed against the 
property and the town clerk shall certify the same to the town tax collector for collection in the 
same manner as ad valorem property taxes are collected. The amount certified by the town clerk to 
the town tax collector for collection shall include the actual cost of removal of said sign. 

Sec. 36-535. - Replacement of manufactured homes. 

Dimensional or use nonconformities associated with manufactured homes shall be addressed in the 
following manner: 

(a) Replacement of a manufactured home with another manufactured home in a lawfully 
established nonconforming manufactured home park. Replacement shall be permitted without 
regard to dimensional nonconformity provided that the replacement manufactured home is no 
older and no smaller in footprint than the existing manufactured home, the replaced home is 
placed in the same location as the original home, and such replacement occurs within 30 days of 
the removal of the original manufactured home. In all other situations, replacement shall be 
prohibited.  
 

(b) Replacement of a nonconforming manufactured home on an individual lot with another 
manufactured home. Replacement shall be permitted provided that new dimensional 
nonconformities are not created, the replacement manufactured home is no older and no 
smaller in footprint than the existing manufactured home, the replaced home is placed in the 
same location as the original home or a different location as long as no new nonconformities are 
created, and such replacement occurs within 30 days of the removal of the original 
manufactured home. In all other situations, replacement shall be prohibited.  

 

19



PROPOSED CODE AMENDMENT – ZONING – CONDITIONAL ZONING DISTRICTS

Sec. 36-5. – Definitions. 

Conditional Zoning District (CZD). A zoning district in which the development and use of the property 
included in the district is subject to predetermined ordinance standards and the rules, regulations, and 
conditions imposed as part of the legislative decision creating the district and applying it to the 
particular property. 

Sec. 36-84. - Conditional zoning district.  

(a)  Intent. It is expected that, in most cases, a general district will appropriately regulate site-specific 
impact of permitted use and structures on surrounding areas, however conditional zoning districts 
provide for those situations where a particular use, properly planned, may be appropriate for a 
particular site, but where the underlying general district has insufficient standards to mitigate the site-
specific impact on surrounding area.  

(b)  Use permitted. Any The uses which may be considered for a conditional zoning district which shall 
established on an individual basis, at the request of the property owner, according to the procedures 
of this section 36-83(d). Zoning of a conditional zoning district is not intended for the securing of 
early or speculative reclassification of property. It is expected that, in most cases, a general district 
will appropriately regulate site-specific impact of permitted use and structures on surrounding areas.  

(c) Conditions.  In establishing a conditional zoning district Town Council may place conditions on the 
property which set individualized standards to the site and a site plan and supporting documents 
illustrating said conditions and standards may be included in the ordinance establishing the district. 
These conditions which may be established by Town Council shall only be those which are 
necessary for ordinance and plan compliance and shall only address the impacts reasonable 
expected to be generated by the project. Said conditions may be proposed by Town Council or the 
applicant and must be mutually approved by Town Council and the applicant.   

(c)  Definition of conditional zoning district. For purpose of this section, a "conditional zoning district" 
shall be defined as a zoning district in which the development and use of the property included in the 
district is subject to predetermined ordinance standards and the rules, regulations, and conditions 
imposed as part of the legislative decision creating the district and applying it to the particular 
property. / If the property use is ever proposed to be changed from the original approved plan, then 
the new proposed use and plan must be resubmitted for approved by the town council.  

 (d)  Petition of request. Property may be rezoned to a conditional zoning district only in response to and 
consistent with a petition of the owners, or agents of the owners of all of the property to be included 
in the district and shall be accompanied by an official petition, a statement analyzing the 
reasonableness of the proposed rezoning request by the petitioner, the established fee, and 
documentation as required by the following:  

(1)  A petition for a conditional zoning district must include a site plan and supporting information 
that specifies the actual use or uses intended for the property and any rules, regulations, and 
conditions that, in addition to all predetermined ordinance requirements, will govern the 
development and use of the property;  

(2)  A boundary survey and vicinity map showing the property's total acreage, current zoning 
classification(s), general location in relation to major streets, date and north arrow;  

(3)  Existing topography on the site and within 300 feet of the boundary of the site, and the general 
nature of the proposed topography contours shown at a maximum of five feet;  

(4)  All existing easements, reservations, rights-of-way, and any other valid restrictions on the use 
of the land;  

20



(5)  The number and general location of all proposed structures;  

(6)  The proposed use of all land and structures, including the number of residential units or the 
total square footage of any nonresidential development;  

(7)  All yards, buffers, screening, and landscaping and sidewalks required by the town code within 
the underlying zoning district;  

(8)  All existing and proposed points of access to public streets and the locations of proposed new 
streets;  

(9)  Delineation of areas within the floodplain;  

(10)  Proposed number and location of the signs;  

(11)  Proposed phasing, if any, and the approximate completion time for the project;  

(12)  The location of existing and proposed storm drainage patterns and facilities intended to serve 
the development;  

(12)  Traffic, parking, and circulation plans, showing the proposed location and arrangement of 
parking spaces and ingress and egress to adjacent streets, existing and proposed;  

(14)  A list of adjoining properties including county tax parcel numbers and the name and address 
of each owner, provided in digital form;  

(15)  The location of significant trees on the petitioned property;  

(13)  The scale of buildings relative to adjoining properties, including sight lines Photographs of 
buildings on properties within 200 feet of the subject property establishing the scale of the 
buildings within the proposed project with those surrounding;  

(14)  Information on the height of all proposed structures;  

(15)  Exterior features of all of the proposed development including but not limited to construction 
and finishing materials;  

(16)  Any supporting text and all documents presented shall constitute part of the petition.  

(e)  Time limits. Time limits for the completion of the projects infrastructure and completion of 
construction shall be established on an individual basis by Town Council based upon the type and 
scope of development. Extensions to established time frames shall be subject to the approval of 
Town Council. A time limit of 240 calendar days for securing applicable permits in order to construct 
the project and 365 calendar days thereafter for completion of the project; provided, however, the 
town council may approve up to an additional 365 calendar days for completion of the project, for 
good cause shown. In the event that the project involves more than three acres and/or more than 
15,000 thousand square feet, the time period for securing applicable permits for the project shall be 
365 calendar days and the time period for completion of the project shall be 730 calendar days 
thereafter; provided, however, the town council may approve up to an additional 180 calendar days 
for completion of the project, for good cause shown. Conditional zoning district projects that have 
approved detailed plans and have secured applicable permits for start of construction as of May 1, 
2009, but on which there has not been a start of construction, will have an additional 12 months to be 
added to the construction time limits in this subsection from the date of approval of the detailed plans 
for the completion of the project.  

(f)  Minor Modifications. Minor modifications to a project shall be submitted to the zoning administrator 
for review. No building permit for the proposed development or any part thereof shall be issued until 
the zoning administrator has determined that the pertinent detailed plans are in accordance with the 
application and general plans as approved by the town council. Minor modifications that can be 
approved by staff are limited to minor adjustments to the location of, modifications that do not affect 
the property lines, do not affect the final plat and which are in substantial compliance with the 
approved plans. Any modification that affects the site plan is not to be considered a minor 
modification. All other modifications must be accomplished as an amendment to the conditional 
zoning district which can only be approved by Town Council after review and recommendation of the 

21



Planning and Zoning Board and a public hearing held by Town Council, but in such circumstance a 
public involvement meeting is not required. An extension of any time frame stated within an 
ordinance designating a conditional zoning district must be approved by Town Council but shall 
otherwise not be considered a modification. Except as herein provided, any modification of the text of 
the conditional zoning district ordinance shall not be considered a modification eligible to be 
approved by staff. 

(g)  Future variance request. Property zoned CZD will not be able to apply for a variance on the 
approved project.  

(h)  Maintaining the zoning district. A CZD is a rezoning which represents both a text and map 
amendment and as such is maintained after the sale of the property. If the property owner wishes to 
change the approved CZD plan, all property owners within the original CZD must apply for a 
rezoning or a modification to the CZD as per Sec. 36-84(o).  

(i)  Guarantee of conditions. At the discretion of the town council, the council may require the property 
owner to guarantee the performance or completion of conditions included in the approved conditional 
zoning plan. Such guarantee may be in the form of:  

(1)  A surety performance bond made by a surety bonding company licensed and authorized to do 
business in the state;  

(2)  A bond of the developer with an assignment to the town of a certificate of deposit as security 
for the bond;  

(3)  A bond of the developer secured by an official bank check drawn in favor of the town and 
deposited with the town clerk;  

(4)  Cash or an irrevocable letter of credit; or  

(5)  A bank escrow account whereby the developer deposits cash, a note, a bond or some other 
instrument readily convertible into cash for a specific face value, with a federally insured 
financial institution in an account payable to the town.  

The amount of the guarantee shall be determined by the town council.  

(j)  District approval. If a petition for a conditional zoning district is approved, the development and use 
of the property shall be governed by the predetermined ordinance requirements applicable to such 
district category ordinance establishing the conditional zoning district, the approved site plan for the 
district, and any additional approved rules, regulations, and conditions, all of which shall constitute 
the zoning regulations for the approved district. Each conditional zoning district will be given a 
special number, distinguishing such conditional zoning district from another zoning district.  

(k)  Planning and zoning review. Following an initial review by town council as set forth in Sec. 36-358 all 
conditional zoning requests shall be submitted to the town planning and zoning board to determine if 
approvals of such plans are made in consideration of identified relevant adopted land-use plans for 
the area including, but not limited to, comprehensive plans, strategic plans, district plans, area plans, 
neighborhood plans, corridor plans, and other land-use policy documents. A statement analyzing the 
reasonableness of the proposed rezoning shall be prepared by the town planning and zoning board 
for each petition for a rezoning to a conditional zoning district and submitted to the town council for 
final action on the request. Due to the scope and complexities which may be presented by a 
conditional zoning district request, the planning and zoning board shall have up to 180 days from first 
consideration to submit its statement of reasonableness and recommendation to town council. If the 
planning and zoning board fails to submit such statement and/or recommendation within 180 days 
then the request shall be forwarded to town council with a record of the planning and zoning board’s 
comments and town council is eligible to consider the request and take final action thereon. 

(l)  Public involvement. Before a public hearing may be held by the town council on a petition for a 
conditional zoning the petitioner must file in the office of the town clerk a written report of at least one 
community meeting held by the petitioner. The report shall include, among other things, a listing of 
those persons and organizations contacted about the meeting and the manner and date of contact, 
the date, time, and location of the meeting, a roster of the persons in attendance at the meeting, a 

22



summary of issues discussed at the meeting, and a description of any changes to the rezoning 
petition made by the petitioner as a result of the meeting. In the event the petitioner has not held at 
least one meeting pursuant to this subsection, the petitioner shall file a report documenting efforts 
that were made to arrange such a meeting and stating the reasons such a meeting was not held. 
The adequacy of a meeting held or report filed pursuant to this subsection shall be considered by the 
town council but shall not be subject to judicial review.  

Notice of such a public hearing shall be given to all the property owners within 200 feet of the 
property boundaries and in accordance with the provisions of G.S. 160A-364.  

(m)  Judicial review. Conditional zoning district decisions under this section are a legislative process and 
not subject to judicial review.  

 (n)  Approval procedures for initial CZD. Except as specifically modified by this section, the procedures to 
be followed by the town council in reviewing, granting, or denying any petition for conditional zoning 
shall be the same as those established for general use district zoning petitions under G.S. Ch. 160A, 
Art. 19. Each ordinance adopted by town council which establishes a conditional zoning district 
within the Town of Weaverville is hereby incorporated into this chapter as a separate and unique 
zoning district and shall be reflected on the town's zoning map. Copies of such ordinances shall be 
kept on file with the town clerk and may be reviewed upon request.  

(o)   Approval procedures for modifications of a CZD. [to be added] 

(p) Final plat approval process.  All water, sewer,  stormwater infrastructure, and all street, 
sidewalk, and similar improvements must be installed and verified as complete by the 
appropriate authority prior to final plat review. Once the required infrastructure is complete, 
the final plat will be reviewed by staff and the planning and zoning board for compliance with 
the relevant portions of the ordinance approving the conditional zoning district for the project. 
After its review the planning and zoning board shall submit a recommendation to town council. 
Town council must consider the planning and zoning board’s findings and recommendation and 
shall approve the final plat and authorize the recordation of same, upon finding that the 
required infrastructure is complete and compliant. 

(q) Noncompliance. In the event of noncompliance by a property owner or any subsequent resale or 
lease of a property for use other than that stipulated in the original CZD approval, the property 
owner would be in violation of the town zoning ordinance.  

(r) Appeal of zoning administrator decisions concerning CZDs. Any determination made by the zoning 
administrator regarding the project and/or this conditional zoning district is appealable to the Zoning 
Board of Adjustment. Such appeal shall be made in accordance with the procedure set forth in Town 
Code Section 36-328(3).  In addition, Staff is required to notify the Mayor and Town Council of any 
appeals related to this project and/or this conditional zoning district proceeding before the Zoning 
Board of Adjustment so that Town Council has the opportunity to participate as a party to the appeal 
should it wish to do so. 

 

23



PROPOSED CODE AMENDMENTS – ZONING – POLITICAL SIGNS 

Sec. 36-201. - Temporary signs.  

Temporary signs shall be allowable in all zoning districts.  

(1)  Signs used prior to and during construction to identify the name of contractor(s) and/or 
developer(s) shall be considered temporary signs, and shall meet the following requirements:  

a.  Each contractor shall have no more than one sign per location which shall be removed 
upon completion of the project.  

b.  Construction signs shall not be placed on trees, rocks, or other natural objects.  

c.  Construction signs shall be either attached to the building or affixed to a secure temporary 
post.  

d.  Construction signs shall be no greater than 32 square feet per side of the sign up to a 
maximum of 64 square feet of aggregate surface area for the entire sign.  

(2)  Political signs are subject to N.C.G.S. 136-32 (b)-(e).Political signs shall be considered 
temporary signs, and shall meet the following requirements:  

a.  No political sign shall be placed in any town or state public right-of-way which includes 
utility poles and/or street medians.  

b.  All such signs shall be removed within two days after the election day.  

(3)  Real estate signs (signs offering property for sale, lease or development) shall be considered 
temporary signs, and shall meet the following requirements:  

a.  Real estate signs in residential zoning districts shall not exceed six square feet in surface 
area per side of sign up to a maximum of 12 square feet of aggregate surface area for the 
entire sign.  

b.  Real estate signs in all other areas shall not exceed 16 square feet in surface area per side 
of sign up to a maximum of 32 square feet of aggregate surface area for the entire sign.  

c.  Real estate signs shall be erected only on the property which is being offered for sale, rent, 
lease and development.  

d.  Real estate signs shall conform to all other applicable provisions of the ordinance not 
inconsistent with this section.  

e.  Real estate signs shall be removed with seven days after the sale or lease of the property 
is closed.  

f.  Real estate directional signs (sign indicating the direction to a property being offered for 
sale) must be located on private property, with written permission of the property owner, at 
the nearest intersection of the major thoroughfare or collector street to the street upon 
which the property which is being offered for sale, rent, lease or development is located.  

(4)  Any other temporary sign must be approved by the zoning administrator, and shall be of a size 
and height which is consistent with signs permitted in the neighborhood in which it will be 
located. Concerning the length of time a temporary sign may be displayed, the applicant must 
choose between the following options within a calendar year: (a) up to four 15-day periods, (b) 
up to two 30-day periods; or (c) one 60-day period. In no event may a temporary sign be 
displayed for more than 60 days within any given calendar year.  

 

24



G.S. 136-32 Page 1 

§ 136-32.  Regulation of signs. 

(a) Commercial Signs. – No unauthorized person shall erect or maintain upon any 

highway any warning or direction sign, marker, signal or light or imitation of any official sign, 

marker, signal or light erected under the provisions of G.S. 136-30, except in cases of 

emergency. No person shall erect or maintain upon any highway any traffic or highway sign or 

signal bearing thereon any commercial or political advertising, except as provided in 

subsections (b) through (e) of this section: Provided, nothing in this section shall be construed 

to prohibit the erection or maintenance of signs, markers, or signals bearing thereon the name 

of an organization authorized to erect the same by the Department of Transportation or by any 

local authority referred to in G.S. 136-31. Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of 

this section shall be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor. The Department of Transportation may 

remove any signs erected without authority or allowed to remain beyond the deadline 

established in subsection (b) of this section. 

(b) Compliant Political Signs Permitted. – During the period beginning on the 30th day 

before the beginning date of "one-stop" early voting under G.S. 163A-1300 and ending on the 

10th day after the primary or election day, persons may place political signs in the right-of-way 

of the State highway system as provided in this section. Signs must be placed in compliance 

with subsection (d) of this section and must be removed by the end of the period prescribed in 

this subsection. 

(c) Definition. – For purposes of this section, "political sign" means any sign that 

advocates for political action. The term does not include a commercial sign. 

(d) Sign Placement. – The permittee must obtain the permission of any property owner 

of a residence, business, or religious institution fronting the right-of-way where a sign would be 

erected. Signs must be placed in accordance with the following: 

(1) No sign shall be permitted in the right-of-way of a fully controlled access 

highway. 

(2) No sign shall be closer than three feet from the edge of the pavement of the 

road. 

(3) No sign shall obscure motorist visibility at an intersection. 

(4) No sign shall be higher than 42 inches above the edge of the pavement of the 

road. 

(5) No sign shall be larger than 864 square inches. 

(6) No sign shall obscure or replace another sign. 

(e) Penalties for Unlawful Removal of Signs. – It is a Class 3 misdemeanor for a person 

to steal, deface, vandalize, or unlawfully remove a political sign that is lawfully placed under 

this section. 

(f) Application Within Municipalities. – Pursuant to Article 8 of Chapter 160A of the 

General Statutes, a city may by ordinance prohibit or regulate the placement of political signs 

on rights-of-way of streets located within the corporate limits of a municipality and maintained 

by the municipality. In the absence of an ordinance prohibiting or regulating the placement of 

political signs on the rights-of-way of streets located within a municipality and maintained by 

the municipality, the provisions of subsections (b) through (e) of this section shall apply.  

(1921, c. 2, s. 9(b); C.S., s. 3846(r); 1927, c. 148, ss. 56, 58; 1933, c. 172, s. 17; 1957, c. 65, s. 

11; 1973, c. 507, s. 5; 1977, c. 464, s. 7.1; 1991 (Reg. Sess., 1992), c. 1030, s. 39; 1993, c. 539, 

s. 981; 1994, Ex. Sess., c. 24, s. 14(c); 2011-408, s. 1; 2017-6, s. 3.) 

25

jjackson
Highlight



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, September 17, 2018 

Subject: Amendment to CZD for Northridge Townhouses –  
Initial Consideration and Setting a Date for a Public Hearing  

Presenter:   Planning Director 

Attachments: None 

Description: 

Within the Ordinance establishing the project commonly known as Northridge Commons 
Townhouses as a conditional zoning district which was adopted on June 18, 2018, staff 
imposed an October 1, 2018, deadline for the applicant to acquire the property. The 
ordinance provides in part: 
 

That this ordinance is effective immediately upon transfer of the Property from  HFW Endeavors, 
LLC, to Northridge Commons Investors, LLC. The applicant is required to provide the Zoning 
Administrator with a copy of a recorded deed showing such transfer as soon as practicable after 
recordation. If such a transfer has not occurred by October 1, 2018, then this ordinance shall be 
automatically repealed. 

The applicant is experiencing some difficulty with meeting the ownership transfer 
deadline. Prior to the transfer taking place it is necessary to remove one of the parcels from 
the conditions, covenants and restrictions of Northridge Commons and, due to its complex 
corporate structure, Lowe’s has been very slow to take action in this regard, resulting in 
unexpected delays that are beyond the applicant’s control.  

A text amendment to remove the October 1, 2018, deadline and make the ordinance 
effective upon the recordation of the transfer of ownership to Northridge Commons 
Investors, LLC is requested. This change must go through the Planning and Zoning Board 
for review and recommendation and a public hearing must be held prior to Town Council 
taking action.  

Action Requested: 

Staff asks that Town Council consider the following motion: 

I move (1) that the Town Council forward to the Planning and Zoning Board for review 
and recommendation the proposed amendment to the Northridge Commons CZD 
Ordinance which removes the ownership transfer deadline of October 1, 2018, and 
makes the effective date of the ordinance coincide with the recordation of the transfer 
of ownership to Northridge Commons Investors, LLC, and (2) that Town Council set a 
public hearing on the proposed amendment for October 15, 2018, at 6:30 pm in 
Council Chambers at Town Hall located at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC. 

26



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
DATE OF MEETING: September 17, 2018  

SUBJECT: Sale of Old Bus Garage 

PRESENTER:  Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENT:  13 Central Avenue - Property Card and Tax Map 
Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property 
with Attachments 

     
 

DESCRIPTION: 

Town Council recently directed the Town Clerk to advertise an offer received on the 
Town property known as the old bus garage. The property card and tax map of the 
property are attached. 

On July 16, 2018, the Town Clerk was directed to advertised the offer receive and 
seek higher qualifying offers. The Town Clerk is in receipt of the attached 
Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property. The Agreement proposes a 
$367,550 purchase price by Lexington Glassworks and represents the last and 
highest qualifying offer that the Town received during the upset bid periods that 
were advertised pursuant to NCGS 160A-269.  

Should Town Council wish to accept this offer and sell the property located at 13 
Central Avenue to Lexington Glassworks pursuant to the attached Agreement, such 
action is appropriate at tonight’s meeting. Under North Carolina law Town Council 
also has the right to reject any and all offers.  

The Town Attorney will be at tonight’s meeting to discuss this offer and the 
disposition process.  

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Discussion and action concerning the attached Agreement.  

27



Bu
nc

om
be

 C
ou

nty

Ju
ne

 11
, 2

01
8

0
0.0

15
0.0

3
0.0

07
5

mi

0
0.0

3
0.0

6
0.0

15
km

1:1
,12

8

6628



6729



6/11/2018 § 160A-269

https://www.ncleg.net/gascripts/statutes/statutelookup.pl?statute=160A-269 1/1

§ 160A-269.  Negotiated offer, advertisement, and upset bids.
A city may receive, solicit, or negotiate an offer to purchase property and advertise it for upset bids. When an

offer is made and the council proposes to accept it, the council shall require the offeror to deposit five percent
(5%) of his bid with the city clerk, and shall publish a notice of the offer. The notice shall contain a general
description of the property, the amount and terms of the offer, and a notice that within 10 days any person may
raise the bid by not less than ten percent (10%) of the first one thousand dollars ($1,000) and five percent (5%)
of the remainder. When a bid is raised, the bidder shall deposit with the city clerk five percent (5%) of the
increased bid, and the clerk shall readvertise the offer at the increased bid. This procedure shall be repeated until
no further qualifying upset bids are received, at which time the council may accept the offer and sell the property
to the highest bidder. The council may at any time reject any and all offers. (1971, c. 698, s. 1; 1979, 2nd Sess.,
c. 1247, s. 25.)

6830



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018   

SUBJECT: Code Amendments - Nuisances 

PRESENTER:   Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Code Amendments 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Staff has been working on a comprehensive revision of the Town’s ordinances regarding 
nuisances. Those proposed amendments are included with tonight’s agenda. With Town 
Council’s previous direction in mind, these regulations have been drafted to focus directly 
on public health and safety issues. 

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Due to the length and complexities of these regulations staff would like some direction 
from the Mayor and Town Council on a review process that best meets the needs of Town 
Council.   

 

 

  

46



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  1 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS – NUISANCES 
 
REPEAL CURRENT CHAPTER 9 AND REPLACE WITH 
THE FOLLOWING: 
 

CHAPTER 9 - NUISANCES 
ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
Sec. 9-100. – Title. 
 
This Chapter 9 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances may be referred to as the Town’s nuisance ordinance 
or public nuisance ordinance. 
 
Sec. 9-101. – Administration. 
 
The town’s law enforcement officers, code enforcement officer, and the town manager, or his or her 
designee, shall be responsible for the administration and enforcement of this chapter. The board of 
adjustment shall be the appeals board for all decisions made under this chapter unless otherwise 
provided. 
 
Sec. 9-102. – Concurrent jurisdiction. 
 
Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to limit the legal authority or powers of county health officials 
or officers of the town police department or fire department in enforcing other laws or health 
regulations, or in otherwise carrying out their duties.  
 
Sec. 9-103. – Violators and chronic violators, defined. 
 
For the purposes of this chapter, violator means the person creating the violation, the person operating 
any motor vehicle, machinery or equipment causing the violation, the violator’s employer, and/or the 
company, partnership, corporation or other person or entity which owns, possesses or controls the 
motor vehicle, machinery or equipment utilized by the violator. 
 
A chronic violator is a person who owns property whereupon, in the previous calendar year, the town 
gave notice of violation at least three times under any provision of the town’s public nuisance 
ordinance. 
 
Sec. 9-104. – Investigation of conditions. 
 
The person(s) having administrative responsibilities under each article within this chapter, upon notice 
from any person of the existence of any of the conditions described in such article, shall, within a 
reasonable period of time, make or cause to be made such investigation as may be necessary to 
determine whether, in fact, such conditions constitute a violation of this chapter.  
 
 
 
 
 

47



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  2 

Sec.9-105. – Enforcement and penalties; penalty not exclusive. 
 
Section 1-6 shall apply to all violations under this chapter. The imposition of a penalty under section 1-6 
of this Code for violations of this chapter shall not prevent the revocation or suspension of any license, 
franchise, or permit issued or granted under the provisions of this Code. 
 
Any condition designated as a nuisance in violation of this chapter may be summarily abated by the 
town directly or through a private contractor and such summary abatement shall be in addition to the 
civil and criminal penalties and other remedies as provided under section 1-6 of this Code. 
 
Any town employee charged with enforcement and collection of abatement costs or civil penalties may, 
in consultation with the town manager and town attorney, reduce the penalties or costs assessed, based 
upon criteria set forth in department guidelines.  

 
Sec. 9-106. – Administrative fee for town abatement. 
 
An administrative fee in the amount of $100 shall be assessed for all violations under this chapter that 
result in abatement action having to be taken by or on behalf of the town. Such administrative fee is 
considered restorative and is intended to provide compensation to the town for costs associated with 
the town’s code enforcement program, including the cost to monitor, control, prosecute, cure and/or 
correct the violation. As such, the amount declared herein is presumed to provide sufficient restoration 
to the town for its costs. 
 
Sec. 9-107. – Cost of abatement declared a lien. 
 
The expense of any enforcement action taken by the town for violations of this chapter shall be paid by 
the person in violation of this article. If the expense is not paid, it shall be a lien on the land or the 
premises where the nuisance occurred and shall have the same priority and be collected as unpaid ad 
valorem taxes.  
 
Upon completion of such removal and abatement, a statement shall be delivered to the town tax collector 
showing the exact cost of the abatement of the unlawful condition plus the administrative fee of $100 as 
set out in Section 9-106 to cover the cost of notice and costs of collection as a civil penalty. The town tax 
collector shall thereupon mail to the owner of the subject property a bill covering the costs, if with 
reasonable diligence the name and address of such owner can be ascertained, and the amount of the bill 
shall become a lien on the property, and if not paid within 30 days shall be collected as in the manner 
provided for the collection of delinquent taxes.  

Any town employee charged with enforcement and collection of abatement costs or civil penalties may, 
in consultation with the town manager and town attorney, reduce the penalties or costs assessed, based 
upon criteria set forth in department guidelines.  

 
Sec. 9-108. – Severability. 
 
Should any section or provision of this chapter be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, that decision shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole or any part thereof, other 
than the part so declared to be invalid. 

48



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  3 

 
Sec. 9-109. – Conflicts with other provisions of town code. 
 
In the event of a conflict between a provision of this chapter and any other section of the Town’s Code 
of Ordinance, the more stringent provision shall apply. 
 
 

ARTICLE II - PUBLIC HEALTH NUISANCES 
 
Sec. 9-200. – Authority and jurisdiction 
 
The Town of Weaverville hereby finds that it is necessary to define, prohibit, regulate and summarily 
abate acts, omissions, or conditions that are dangerous or prejudicial to the public health or public 
safety within the Town of Weaverville. The regulations contained within this article are adopted 
pursuant to the authority granted under NCGS § 160A-193 and § 160A-174. 
 
Sec. 9-201. – Nuisances prohibited; enumeration not exclusive 
 
The following enumerated and described conditions are hereby found, deemed, and declared to 
constitute a detriment, danger, and hazard to the public health and public safety and the same are 
found, deemed and declared to be public health nuisances wherever the same may exist and are hereby 
unlawful; however, this enumeration shall not be deemed or construed to be exclusive, limiting, or 
restrictive. 
 

(1) Any condition which constitutes a breeding ground or harbor for rats, mosquitoes, harmful 
insects, snakes, or other pests, or has the potential for becoming a breeding ground or harbor 
for such pests. 

(2) Hides, dried or green, provided the same may be kept when thoroughly cured and odorless. 
(3) Any concentration of combustible items including but not limited to mattresses, boxes, paper, 

automobile tires and tubes, garbage, trash, refuse, brush, old clothes and rags. 
(4) A collection place, storage, or accumulation of old, worn out, broken, or discarded machinery, 

vehicle parts, junk, tires, tire rims and tubes, metal products, old clothes, rags, furniture, 
stoves, refrigerators, appliances, cans and containers, household goods, mattresses, boxes, 
paper, plumbing or electrical fixtures, glass products, brush, limbs, fencing materials, wood 
products (not including firewood). 

(5) Any collection of garbage, litter, food waste, human waste, animal waste, or any other rotten 
or putrescible matter of any kind. 

(6) Any condition which blocks, hinders, or obstructs in any way the natural flow of streams, 
branches, creeks, surface waters, ditches, or drains, to the extent that the premises is not free 
from standing water. 

(7) Any improper or inadequate drainage on private property which causes flooding or interferes 
with the use of or endangers in any way the streets, sidewalks, parks, or other town-owned 
property of any kind; provided, the notices required and powers conferred by this article by 
and on the code enforcement officer in abating the nuisances defined by this subsection shall 
be given and exercised by the director of public works. 

(8) Structures, remains of structures, or lots with a condition that is detrimental, dangerous, or 
hazardous to the public safety, health, or welfare. For purposes of the enforcement of this 
section, this shall be a condition which consists of one or more of the following: 

49



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  4 

i. Glass, metal, or other sharp objects in accessible areas; 
ii. Holes, sinkholes, excavations, wells, or embankments without sufficient 

enclosure or covering to prevent persons from injury; 
iii. Surviving foundations, walls, or roofs that may collapse or that create heights of 

3 feet or more in areas where they may be scaled; 
iv. Any substance which is hazardous or harmful to humans or pets; 
v. Any open or accessible utility lines such as natural gas, water, sewer, or 

electrical; 
vi. Structures or remains of structures open to the elements, which are a danger to 

children, tend to attract vagrants or persons intent on criminal activities or 
other activities that would constitute a public nuisance; 

vii. Structures ordered closed by a code compliance officer or other quasi-judicial 
authority which are reopened without cause or justification; 

viii. Structures, properties, or conditions posing a fire danger; 
ix. Structures, properties, or conditions likely to become a breeding place or 

habitat for rats, snakes or other pests. 
 

Any owner of property who is in non-compliance with this subsection may enclose the 
portions of their property in violation with a secure fence of 5 feet in height in order to 
prevent the entry of humans until such time as the property is repaired to Code standards or 
completely demolish and is no longer in a detrimental, dangerous or hazardous state.  Such 
enclosed shall be deemed in compliance with this subsection provided the enclosed nuisance 
condition does not and will not reach beyond the perimeter of the property. 

(9) Any indoor furniture, indoor appliances, or metal products of any kind or nature openly kept 
which are broken or inoperable or have jagged edges of metal or glass, or areas of 
confinement. 

(10) Any use of carports, open porches, decks, open garages and other open outdoor areas that 
are visible from the street that increases the likelihood of fire, may conceal dangerous 
conditions, or may be a breeding place or habitat for rats, snakes, or other pests, including, 
but not limited to, storage or collection of boxes, appliances, furniture (not including outdoor 
furniture), motor vehicle parts (including seats), tools, equipment, junk, garbage, old worn out 
broken or discarded machinery and equipment, cans, containers, household goods; 

(11) Any accumulation of mud or debris on a public street related to a construction, timbering, or 
other similar land use project; violator will be given 24 hours to clean or clear the street, 
however, if it is found by the town that the situation is causing a clear and present danger or 
hazard to traffic or the general public, such cleaning or clearing may be required to take place 
as soon after notification as practicable. 

(12) Any growth or overgrowth of grass, weeds, or other vegetation that is greater than 12 inches 
on the average, except as provided below: 

(a) Natural landscape areas or wooded lots. This requirement shall not apply to lots 
that have never been cleared in anticipation of development, lots that have been 
landscaped or replanted to appear as natural, lots covered with trees, undeveloped 
areas. Natural landscape areas and wooded lots shall be maintained and shall not 
harbor, create, nor allow to exist any condition defined as a nuisance or determined 
by the code enforcement officer to be a condition which poses a health hazard for 
the general welfare of the public. Natural landscape vegetation shall not overhang 
into the public street right-of-way. 

50



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  5 

(b) Ravines, creek banks, steep slopes. This requirement shall not apply to those 
properties, or those portions of properties, consisting of land features such as 
ravines, creek banks or steep slopes where maintenance would be unsafe and/or 
the chance of erosion would increase if the vegetation were decreased. 

(c) Lots exceeding one acre is size. This requirement shall not apply to any lot exceeding 
one acre in size, or any combined parcels under common ownership that exceed 
one acre in size, except that such lot(s) must comply with the requirements of this 
subsection to a depth of 10 feet from the public street or sidewalk and the 
vegetation on such lots must be cut at least twice a year.  

(d) Hay production. This requirement shall not apply to any property that is cultivating 
hay for use or sale as an agricultural commodity. 

(e) Ornamental grasses. Ornamental grasses chosen for features like color and form, 
including but not limited to switch grass, pampas grass, and bamboo, shall not be 
treated as nuisance vegetation under this section. 

(f) Any and all grass or weeds growing in any public sidewalk or public street and any hedges or 
plantings bordering thereon not properly trimmed;  

(g) Any accumulation of dead weeds, grass, brush, or undergrowth; 
(h) Any and all trees or bushes that are dead, diseased, or not properly trimmed, and which 

present a clear and present danger or hazard to town streets and sidewalks and the 
pedestrian and motoring public. 

(i) Any object or vegetative growth within the sight distance at or near street rights-of-way as the 
same constitutes a hazard to the town and the health and safety of motorists and pedestrians. 

(j) Any growth of noxious vegetation, including poison sumac (Rhus vernix), poison ivy (Rhus 
radicans), or poison oak (Rhus toxicodendron), in a location likely to be accessible to the 
general public. 

(k) Any other condition specifically prohibited in this article, or any other condition specifically 
declared to be a nuisance or a danger to the public health and/or public safety of inhabitants 
of the town and a public nuisance by the town council. 
 

Sec. 9-202. – Open areas defined 
 
Open areas are defined as those areas of property or a portion thereof that is open, including building 
openings of residential dwelling units that are open to the exterior, such as attached carports or 
porches, and any other exterior portions of properties ordinarily exposed to public view.  
 
 
Sec. 9-203. – Notice to abate. 
 
If any person shall violate the provisions of this article, it shall be the duty of the town to give notice to 
the owner or to any person in possession of the subject property, as provided in section 9-205, directing 
that all unlawful conditions existing on the property be abated within 10 days from the date of such 
notice, except as provided in section 9-204 below. 
 
The notice of abatement shall contain the following: 
 

a. A statement that conditions exists on the property which constitute a public health 
nuisance; 

b. The condition existing; 

51



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  6 

c. The location of such condition; 
d. A statement ordering the owner and the occupant or person in possession of the 

premises to abate the nuisance, and that, unless the condition is abated within 10 days 
(or such other reasonable period of time for abatement) from the mailing of the notice 
as specified in section 9-205, the conditions constituting a nuisance will be abated by 
the town and the cost of abatement shall constitute a lien against the premises; 

e. A statement indicated how and with whom an appeal from the notice of abatement can 
be filed. 

 
Sec. 9-204. – Emergency abatement by town. 
 
If, in the opinion of the code enforcement officer, the unlawful condition is such that it is of imminent 
danger or peril to the public, then any authorized representative of the town may, without notice, 
proceed to abate the same, and the cost thereof shall be charged against the property as is provided in 
this article. 
 
The code enforcement officer or a law enforcement officer may enter upon the premises for the 
purpose of abating the nuisance and may summarily remove, abate, or remedy any condition in the 
town limits that is a prohibited nuisance under this article. 

 
Sec. 9-205. – Service of  notice to abate. 
 
The owner and/or occupant of subject property shall be notified of violation of this article by personal 
delivery of said notice or by posting in a conspicuous place on the premises affected and by regular and 
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. If such registered or certified notice is refused or is 
returned unclaimed, but the regular mail is not returned by the post office within 10 days after the mailing, 
the service shall be deemed sufficient. The person mailing such order by regular mail shall certify that fact 
and the date thereof and such certificate shall be deemed conclusive in the absence of fraud. If the name 
of the owner cannot be ascertained, then the notice shall be served on any person in possession of the 
subject property.  

Any such notice may be served by any authorized representative of the town manager, the code 
enforcement officer or by any law enforcement officer of the town. 
 
The town may notify a chronic violator of the town's public nuisance ordinance that, if the violator's 
property is found to be in violation of the ordinance, the town shall, without further notice in the calendar 
year in which notice is given, take action to remedy the violation, and the expense of the action shall 
become a lien upon the property and shall be collected as unpaid taxes. The notice shall be sent by 
registered or certified mail.  

 

Sec. 9-206. – Defect in notice not to affect lien. 
 
Any defect in the method of giving notice required by this section, or in the form thereof, or the giving 
of such notice to an improper person, shall not prevent the town, in any case where the work of abating 
an unlawful condition upon any property is caused by the town, from collecting the cost thereof from 
the owner, nor shall it affect the validity of the lien on the property for such cost. 
 

52



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  7 

Sec. 9-207. – Appeal notice. 
 
Within the time frame stated in the notice to abate, the owner or occupant of the property where the 
nuisance exists may appeal the findings of the town manager, his or her designee, or the code 
enforcement officer to the Weaverville Board of Adjustment by giving written notice of appeal to such 
officer signing the notice to abate. An appeal stays the abatement of the nuisances until a final 
determination by the board of adjustment. In the event no appeal is taken, the town may proceed to 
abate the nuisance.  
 
Sec. 9-208. – Appeal hearing; determination by the board of adjustment. 
 
In the event an appeal is filed as provided in this article, the board of adjustment, after hearing all 
interested persons and reviewing the findings of the town manager, his or her designee or the code 
enforcement officer, may affirm or reverse the finding that a nuisance exists in the town. If the board of 
adjustment shall determine that the findings are correct and proper, it shall adopt an order specifically 
declaring the condition existing on the property to be a danger and hazard to the health and safety of 
the inhabitants of the town and a public health nuisance and direct the town to cause such conditions to 
be abated.  
 
Sec. 9-209. – Abatement by town where owner fails to abate. 
 
Upon the failure of the owner or person in possession of any premises to abate an unlawful condition 
existing thereupon within the time prescribed, it shall be the duty of an authorized town representative 
to cause the removal and abatement of such unlawful condition therefrom.  The town manager, code 
enforcement officer, law enforcement officer, or authorized town representative are hereby given full 
power and authority to enter upon the premises upon which a nuisance is found to exist under the 
provisions of this article for the purpose of abating the nuisance and may summarily remove, abate, or 
remedy any condition in the town limits that is a prohibited nuisance under this article. 
 
Sec. 9-210. – Cost of abatement declared a lien. 
 
The expense of any enforcement action taken by the town for violations of this article shall be paid by 
the person in violation of this article. If the expense is not paid, it shall be a lien on the land or the 
premises where the nuisance occurred and shall have the same priority and be collected as unpaid ad 
valorem taxes.  
 
Upon completion of such removal and abatement, a statement shall be delivered to the town tax collector 
showing the exact cost of the abatement of the unlawful condition plus the administrative fee of $100 as 
set out in Section 9-106 to cover the cost of notice and costs of collection as a civil penalty. The town tax 
collector shall thereupon mail to the owner of the subject property a bill covering the costs, if with 
reasonable diligence the name and address of such owner can be ascertained, and the amount of the bill 
shall become a lien on the property, and if not paid within 30 days shall be collected as in the manner 
provided for the collection of delinquent taxes.  

 

 
  

53



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  8 

ARTICLE III - ABANDONED AND  JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLES 
 
Sec. 9-300. – Authority and jurisdiction. 
 
The Town of Weaverville hereby finds that regulation of abandoned and junked motor vehicles is 
necessary and desirable to protect the health and safety of the residents of the Town of Weaverville. 
The regulations contained within this article are adopted pursuant to the authority granted under NCGS 
§ 160A-303. 
 
Sec. 9-301. – Administration. 
 
The chief of police and code enforcement officer, and their designees, shall be responsible for the 
administration and enforcement of this article.  
 
The chief of police, or his or her designee, is authorized to designate a motor vehicle as an abandoned 
motor vehicle as defined in this article, and shall be responsible for administering the removal and 
disposition of vehicles determined to be abandoned on the public streets and highways within the town 
and on property owned or operated by the town. The chief of police shall further be responsible for 
administering the removal and disposition of vehicles designated as abandoned and/or junked motor 
vehicles from private property.  
 
The town may contract with private tow companies to remove, store, and dispose of abandoned motor 
vehicles and junked motor vehicles in compliance with this article and applicable North Carolina law.  
 
Sec. 9-302. – Administrative search and inspection warrants. 
 
The authorized officials, upon notice from any person of the existence of any of the conditions described 
in this article, shall make or cause to be made such investigation as may be necessary to determine 
whether, in fact, such conditions constitute a violation of this article. 
 
The authorized officials are authorized to secure an administrative search and inspection warrant, as 
provided by NCGS 15-27.2, in order to conduct any  necessary inspection of the premises on which an 
abandoned motor vehicle or junked motor vehicle may be located and to obtain evidence to determine 
whether there is any violation of any provisions of this article.   
 
Sec. 9-303. – Immunity. 
 
In accordance with NCGS 160A-303(f), no person shall be held to answer in any civil or criminal action to 
any owner or other person legally entitled to the possession of any abandoned, lost, or stolen motor 
vehicle for disposing of the vehicle as provided in this article. 
 
 
Sec. 9-304. – Definitions. 
 
Abandoned motor vehicle means any motor vehicle: 
  

(1) left upon a street or highway in violation of the law or ordinance regulating or prohibiting 
parking; or  

54



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  9 

(2) left on property owned or operated by the Town for longer than 24 hours; or  
(3) left in any Town owned or operated parking lot for longer than 7 days; or  
(4) left on any street or highway for longer than 7 days or is determined by law enforcement to 

be a hazard to the motoring public; or  
(5) left on private property without the consent of the owner, occupant, or lessee thereof for 

longer than 2 hours.  
 
Authorized officials are the chief of police and the code enforcement officer, and their respective 
designees. 
 
Junked motor vehicle means a vehicle that does not display a current license plate and one of the follow 
conditions is present: 
 

(1) is partially dismantled or wrecked; or 
(2) cannot be self-propelled or moved in the manner in which it was originally intended to 

move; or 
(3) is more than 5 years old and appears to be worth less than $500. 

 
Motor vehicle is defined to include all machines designed or intended to travel over land or water by 
self-propulsion or which attached to any self-propelled vehicle. Use of the term vehicle and trailer in this 
article shall mean motor vehicle. For purposes of this article an electric personal assistive mobility device 
as defined in NCGS § 20-4.01(7b) is not a motor vehicle.  
 
Sec. 9-305. – Exemptions. 
 
This article does not apply to any motor vehicle in an enclosed building or any motor vehicle on the 
premises of a business enterprise being operated in a lawful place and manner if the vehicle is necessary 
to the operation of the enterprise, or to any motor vehicle in an appropriate storage place or depository 
maintained in a lawful place and manner by the town.  
 
Sec. 9-306. – Abandoned motor vehicles unlawful. 
 
It shall be unlawful for the registered owner or person entitled to the possession of the vehicle to allow 
any abandoned motor vehicle to remain on any public street, public property, or private property in 
violation of this article.  
 
It shall be unlawful for the registered owner or person entitled to the possession of an abandoned 
motor vehicle, or for the owner, lessee, or occupant of the real property upon which an abandoned 
motor vehicle is located to leave or allow the motor vehicle to remain on the property after the motor 
vehicle has been ordered removed. 
 
Sec. 9-307. – Removal of abandoned motor vehicles from public streets and public property. 
 
Any abandoned motor vehicle on the public streets or public property may be removed by or under the 
direction of a law enforcement officer or a code enforcement officer. Notice of each removal shall be 
given to the owner of the vehicle as promptly as possible in accordance with the pre-tow and post-tow 
notice provisions as stated in this article.  
 

55



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  10 

Sec. 9-308. – Removal of abandoned motor vehicles from private property. 
 
Any abandoned motor vehicle on private property may be removed by or under the direction of a law 
enforcement officer or a code enforcement officer upon the written request of the owner, lessee, or 
occupant of the premises.  
 
It shall be unlawful for the registered owner or person entitled to the possession of an abandoned 
motor vehicle, or for the owner, lessee, or occupant of the real property upon which an abandoned 
motor vehicle is located to leave or allow a motor vehicle to remain on the property after the motor 
vehicle has been ordered removed. 
 
Sec. 9-309. – Removal and disposition at the request of the owner. 
 
A law enforcement officer or code enforcement officer may, with the consent of the owner of a motor 
vehicle, remove and dispose of any motor vehicle as a junked motor vehicle regardless of the value, 
condition, or age of such motor vehicle and without compliance with the notice, hearing, or sale 
procedures in this article. 
 
Sec. 9-310. – Pre-tow notice; exception. 
 
Except as provided herein, any junked or abandoned motor vehicle in violation of this article may be 
removed by towing only after a warning notice is provided. Such notice shall be affixed to the windshield 
or some other conspicuous place on the vehicle. That notice shall state that the motor vehicle will be 
removed on a specified date, no sooner than 7 days after the notice is affixed to the motor vehicle, 
unless the motor vehicle is brought into compliance by the owner or legal possessor prior to that time. 
The notice shall state the procedure the owner must follow to request a probable cause hearing before 
the towing.  
 
Prior notice need not be given to remove an abandoned or junked motor vehicle if a law enforcement 
officer determines that there is a special need for prompt action to eliminate obstructions to the flow of 
traffic or immediate removal is necessary to maintain and protect the public safety and welfare. 
Circumstances justifying the removal of such vehicles without prior notice include, but are not limited 
to, the following: 
 

(1) For vehicles left on the public streets and highways, town council determines that immediate 
removal of such vehicles may be warranted when they are:  
 

(i) obstructing traffic; 
(ii) left on the street or highway in violation of a law or ordinance prohibiting 

parking; 
(iii) parked in a “no stopping” or “no standing” zone; 
(iv) parked in a loading zone. 

 
(2) For vehicles left on town-owned property or on private property, such vehicles may be 

removed without giving prior notice only in those circumstances where the chief of police or 
code enforcement officer make written findings that there is a special need for prompt action 
to protect and maintain the public health, safety, and welfare, including, but not limited to, the 
following circumstances: 

56



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  11 

 
(i) Vehicles blocking or obstructing ingress or egress to businesses or residences; 
(ii) Vehicles parked in such a location or manner as to pose a traffic hazard;  
(iii) Vehicles that represent an imminent threat to life or property. 

 
Sec. 9-311. – Post-towing procedures; post-tow notice. 
 
(a) Post-towing procedures shall be consistent with Article 7A of Chapter 20 of the North Carolina 

General Statutes. 
 
(b) Whenever a vehicle with a valid registration plate or registration number is towed, the authorizing 

person shall notify the last known registered owner of the following: 
 

(i) The description of the vehicle; 
(ii) The place from which the vehicle may be released; 
(iii) The violation with which the owner is charged; 
(iv) The procedure the owner must follow to have the vehicle returned to him or 

her; 
(v) The procedure the owner must follow to request a probable cause hearing on 

the towing.  
 

If the vehicle has a North Carolina registration plate or registration, notice shall be given to the 
owner within 24 hours; if the vehicle is not registered in North Carolina, notice shall be given to the 
owner within 72 hours. This notice shall, if feasible, be given by telephone. Whether or not the 
owner is reachable by telephone, notice shall be mailed to his or her last known address unless he 
or she, or their agent, waives this notice in writing. 

 
(c) Whenever a vehicle with neither a valid registration plate nor registration is towed as provided 

herein, the authorizing person shall make reasonable efforts, including checking the vehicle 
identification number, to determine the last known registered owner of the vehicle and to notify 
him or her of the information listed in subsection (a) above. Reasonable efforts shall be presumed 
if the requirements of the pre-tow notice have been followed. 
 

Sec. 9-312. – Hearing; probable cause hearing. 
 

(a) The owner or any other person entitled to claim possession of a motor vehicle towed pursuant to 
this article may request a hearing either before towing or after towing of the motor vehicle. The 
only issue at the hearing is whether or not the town can demonstrate probable cause to tow the 
motor vehicle. The town manager, or his or her designee, shall serve as the hearing officer. A 
request for hearing shall be filed with the code enforcement officer, and he or she shall set the 
hearing within 3 days of the date of the hearing request. The owner or any other person entitled to 
claim possession of the vehicle shall be notified of the time and place of the hearing, the specific 
grounds for the classification of the vehicle as an abandoned motor vehicle or junked motor 
vehicle, and the reason for removal of the vehicle. 
  

(b) The owner, the person who towed the vehicle, the person who authorized the towing, and any 
other interested parties may present evidence at the hearing. The person authorizing the towing 

57



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  12 

and the person who towed the vehicle may submit an affidavit in lieu of appearing personally, but 
the affidavit does not preclude that person from also testifying. 

 
(c) If the hearing is pre-tow and the hearing officer finds that the town has probable cause, the motor 

vehicle will be removed and the cost for removal will become a lien on the motor vehicle. If the 
hearing officer finds that probable cause does not exist, the town will not tow the vehicle and no 
costs will be charged. 

 
(d) If the hearing is post-tow and the hearing officer finds that the town had probable cause, the lien 

for cost of removal shall remain. If the hearing officer finds that probable cause did not exist, the 
lien shall be extinguished. 

 
(e) The hearing officer shall prepare a written report within 5 days of the hearing stating his or her 

conclusions concerning whether the vehicle was in violation of this article and the reasons and 
evidence upon which the conclusion was based. The owner or any other person entitled to claim 
possession of the vehicle shall be notified of this decision by regular mail.  

 
(f) Any aggrieved party may appeal the hearing officer’s decision to the town’s board of adjustment by 

filing an appeal in writing within 15 days after the date of the report of the hearing officer, but not 
thereafter.  

 
 
Sec. 9-313. – Obtaining possession of a towed vehicle; payment of towing fees. 
 
(a) At any stage in a proceeding under this article, including before the probable cause hearing, the 

owner or other person entitled to possession may obtain possession of a vehicle that has been 
towed in accordance with this article by: 

 
(1) Paying the towing fee and costs incident to such fee; or 
(2) Posting a bond for double the amount of the towing fee. 

 
(b) The person who tows a vehicle under this article is responsible for collecting towing fees from the 

owner of that vehicle before that owner can obtain possession of the vehicle.  In addition, prior to 
obtaining possession of the towed vehicle, the owner must pay to the town an administrative fee 
of $100 as set out in section 9-106.  

 
 
Sec. 9-314. – Liens on towed vehicles; sale of towed vehicles. 
 
Liens for nonpayment of charges and fees related to the towing of vehicles under this article, and the 
sale of such vehicles in enforcement of those liens, shall be handled in accordance with Article 1 of 
Chapter 44A of the North Carolina, by the person towing vehicles under this article.  
 
 
  

58



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  13 

ARTICLE IV - NOISE 
 
Sec. 9-400. – Authority and jurisdiction. 
 
The Town of Weaverville hereby finds that it is necessary to define, prohibit, regulate and summarily 
abate acts, omissions, or conditions that are dangerous or prejudicial to the public health or public 
safety within the Town of Weaverville. The regulations contained within this article are adopted 
pursuant to the authority granted under NCGS § 160A-193 and § 160A-174. 
 
Sec. 9-401. – Unlawful noise. 
 
It shall be unlawful to emit, or to cause or permit to be made, any unreasonably loud, annoying, 
frightening, loud and disturbing, or unnecessary noise. Specifically, it shall be unlawful to emit noise of 
such character, intensity, or duration as to be detrimental to the life or health of reasonable persons of 
ordinary sensibilities.  Factors to consider in determining whether a violation exists include, but are not 
limited to: 
 

(a) The volume of the noise; 
(b) The intensity of the noise; 
(c) Whether the nature of the noise is usual or unusual; 
(d) Whether the origin of the noise is natural or unnatural; 
(e) The volume and intensity of the background noise, if any; 
(f) The proximity of the noise to residential sleeping facilities; 
(g) The nature and zoning of the area within which the noise emanates; 
(h) The density of the inhabitation of the area within which the noise emanates; 
(i) The time of the day or night the noise occurs; 
(j) The duration of the noise; and  
(k) Whether the noise is recurrent, intermittent, or constant. 

 
Sec. 9-402. – Presumption in prosecution for noise violation. 
 
The complaints of 2 or more persons, at least one of whom resides in a different home from the other 
complaining person or persons, or the complaint of one or more persons, when combined with the 
complaint of a duly authorized investigating person, shall be prima facie evidence that such sound is a 
loud and annoying, frightening, loud and disturbing, unreasonably loud or unnecessary noise. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

59



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  14 

OPTIONAL PROVISIONS FOR ARTICLE III 
 
Sec. 9-. – Junked motor vehicles that are declared health or safety hazards are unlawful. 
 
It shall be unlawful for the registered owner or person entitled to the possession of the vehicle to allow 
any junked motor vehicle that is declared by town council to be a health or safety hazard to remain on 
any public street, public property or private property. In determining whether there is a health, safety, 
or fire hazard, town council may take into consideration that the motor vehicle is found to be: 

 
(i) A breeding ground or harbor for mosquitoes, other insects, rats, snakes or other 

pests; or 
(ii) A point of collection of pools or ponds of water; or 
(iii) A point of concentration of quantities of gasoline, oil, or other flammable or 

explosive material; or 
(iv) One which has areas of confinement which cannot be operated from the inside, 

such as trunks, hoods, etc.; or 
(v) So situated or located that there is a danger of it falling or turning over; or 
(vi) One which is a point of collection of garbage, food waste, animal waste, or any 

other rotten or putrescible matter of any kind; or 
(vii) One which has parts which are jagged or contain sharp edges of metal or glass; 

or 
(viii) A condition or circumstance which exposes the general public to safety, health, 

or fire hazards. 
 

It shall be unlawful for the registered owner or person entitled to the possession of a junked motor 
vehicle that is declared by town council to be a health or safety hazard, or for the owner, lessee, or 
occupant of the real property upon which that junked motor vehicle is located to leave or allow the 
motor vehicle to remain on the property after the motor vehicle has been ordered removed. 
 
Sec. 9-. – Removal of junked motor vehicles from private property. 
 
A junked motor vehicle on private property may be removed by or under the direction of a law 
enforcement officer or a code enforcement officer without the written request or consent of the owner, 
lessee, or occupant of the premises when town council has declared in writing the vehicle to be a health 
or safety hazard and ordered its removal.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

60



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  15 

OPTIONAL PROVISIONS FOR ARTICLE IV 
 
Sec. 9-. – Prohibited noises; enumeration not exclusive. 
 
Except when specifically allowed as a part of a special event permitted under Town Code, in addition to 
any other violations of this chapter, the following acts are specifically declared to be unreasonably loud 
and annoying, frightening, loud and disturbing, or unnecessary noise, the emission of which shall be 
unlawful. The following enumeration shall not be deemed to be exclusive: 
 

(a) The sounding of any horn or signal device on any automobile, motorcycle, bus or other 
vehicle while not in motion, except as a danger signal, or if in motion, only as a danger signal 
after or as brakes are being applied and deceleration of the vehicle is intended; the creation 
by means of any such signal device of any unreasonably loud or harsh sound; and the 
sounding of such device for an unnecessary and unreasonable period of time.  

(b) The use of any gong or siren upon any vehicle other than police, fire, ambulance or other 
emergency vehicles.  

(c) Amplified sound or musical instruments played in such a manner or with such volume during 
the nighttime hours as to annoy or disturb the quiet, comfort or repose of any person or 
persons in any dwelling, hotel, motel or other type of residence.  

(d) The use of any automobile, motorcycle or other vehicle so out of repair, so loaded or in such 
manner as to create loud or unnecessary grating, grinding, rattling or other noise.  

(e) The blowing of any steam whistle attached to any stationary boiler, except to give notice of 
the time to begin or stop work or as warning of danger.  

(f) The discharge into the open air of the exhaust of any stationary internal combustion engine 
or motor vehicle, except through a muffler or other device which will effectively prevent loud 
or explosive noises therefrom.  

(g) The excavation of land, erection, demolition, alteration or repair of any building or other 
structure in a residential district other than between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m., 
except by permission of the code enforcement officer when, in the opinion of the code 
enforcement officer, such work will not create objectionable noise; upon complaint in writing 
of the occupant of property near the location of the work, the code enforcement shall 
immediately revoke the permission and the work outside of allowable hours shall be 
immediately discontinued. The code enforcement officer may permit emergency work in the 
preservation of public health or safety at any time.  

(h) The creation of any excessive noise on any street adjacent to any school, institution of 
learning or court, while the same are in session, or within one hundred fifty (150) feet of any 
hospital or other residential healthcare facility, which unreasonably interferes with the work 
of such institution or which disturbs or unduly annoys patients in the hospital.  

(i) The creation of loud and excessive noise in connection with loading or unloading any vehicles 
or the opening and destruction of bales, boxes, crates and containers.  

(j) The shouting and crying of peddlers, barkers, hawkers or vendors which disturbs the quiet 
and peace of the neighborhood.  

(k) The use of any drum, loudspeaker or other instrument or device for the purpose of attracting 
attention by creation of noise to any performance, show or sale or display of merchandise.  

(l) The conducting, operating or maintaining of any garage or filling station, or the repair, 
rebuilding or testing of any motor vehicle in any residential district, so as to cause loud or 
offensive noises to be emitted therefrom during the nighttime hours of 9:00 pm to 7:00 am.  

61



 

Staff Draft – 6 September 2018  16 

(m) The firing or discharging of firearms in the streets or elsewhere for the purpose of making 
noise or disturbance.  

(n) The creation of excessive noise by the operation of an airplane over the town by stunting, 
diving or otherwise operating an airplane for the purpose of advertising or otherwise.  

(o) No person shall own, keep, harbor, or have in his or her possession, any dog, bird, or other 
animal which, by frequent or habitual crying, howling, yelping, barking, squawking, meowing, 
or otherwise, causes loud noises which disturbs the quiet, comfort or repose of any person.  

(p) The operation on public property or on public vehicular areas of any sound amplifier which is 
part of, or connected to, any radio, stereo receiver, compact disc player, cassette tape player, 
or other similar device when operated in such a manner as to be plainly audible at a distance 
of fifty (50) feet from the building, structure, or vehicle in which it is located, is prohibited 
and is a violation of this section. 

 
Sec. 9-. – Sounds impacting residential life. 
 
It shall be unlawful to carry on the following activities in any residentially zoned area of the town during 
the nighttime hours of 9:00 pm to 7:00 am: 
 

(a) Operation of refuse collection machinery; 
(b) Operation of construction machinery; 
(c) Operation of garage machinery; 
(d) Operation of lawn mowers and other domestic tools used outside. 

 
This section shall not apply to emergency operations designed to protect the public health and safety.  
 
Sec. 9-. – Burden of persuasion regarding exceptions. 
 
In any enforcement proceeding concerning violations of this article, if an exception stated in this article 
would limit an obligation, limit a liability or eliminate either an obligation or a liability, the person who 
would benefit from the application of the exception shall have the burden of persuasion that the 
exception applies and that the terms of the exception have been met. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z:\Administration\Ordinances & Resolutions\Code Amendments - Nuisances - September 2018.docx 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68


	Sept 17 2018 Agenda
	Public Information and Input on USDA Application
	August 20 2018 -Town Council Minutes
	Monthly Tax Report -September 2018
	Tax Releases - September 2018
	Code Amendments - Zoning - Nonconformities, CZD, Political Signage - Set PH
	Amendment to CZD for Northridge Townshouses - Initial Consideration
	Sale of Old Bus Garage
	Code Amendments - Nuisances - September 2018
	Quarterly Report - Public Works and Water



